Public Document Pack

Communities, Equality and Local Government
Committee

Meeting Venue: Cynulliad

Committee Room 3 - Senedd Cenedlaethol
Cymru

Meeting date: National

21 September 2011 Assembly for
Wales

Meeting time: F"
09:30 /

For further information please contact:

Marc Wyn Jones Sarah Bartlett
Committee Clerk Deputy Committee Clerk
029 2089 8120 / 029 2089 8120 029 2089 8429

CELG.committee@wales.gov.uk

Agenda

1. Introduction and Apologies

2. Disability-related Harassment - Evidence gathering (Pages 1 - 33)
Equality and Human Rights Commission in Wales (09.30 - 10.30)
CELG(4)-02-11 (p1)

CELG(4)-02-11 (pla)
e Kate Bennett, National Director
e Sue Dye, Head of Communications and Public Relations

Break (10.30 - 10.40)

Mencap Cymru (10.40 - 11.20)
CELG(4)-02-11 (p2)

e Wayne Crocker, Director

e Claire Bowler, Co-chair

e Dawn Gullis, External Affairs Officer

All Wales Hate Crime Research Project (11.20 - 12.00)
CELG(4)-02-11 (p3)

e Dr Mair Rigby, Project Officer, Race Equality First

e DrJasmin Tregidga, Research Associate, Cardiff University

3. Papers to Note (Pages 34 - 40)
Correspondence from John Cresswell - Universal Broadband coverage in Wales



CELG(4)-02-11 (p4)

Correspondence from Mark Drakeford AM - Proposed cuts to the Equality and Human
Rights Commission’s Office
CELG(4)-02-11 (p5)

Correspondence from Kay Jenkins - Performance standards for Returning Officers
CELG(4)-02-11 (pb6)

Link to report - Hidden in plain sight - Inquiry into disability-related harassment
CELG(4)-02-11 (p7)



Hidden in
plain sight

An Equality and Human
Rights Commission Inquiry
into disability-related
harassment

Wales summary
September 2011

s

Cydraddoldeb a | Human Rig

_ Hawliau Dynol




Inquiry into disability-related harassment - Wales summary

0] =3 TY0] ' 3
Why carry out an iNQUITY? ....ceeeeieiieiiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesesesesssesees 4
The wider problem ..........eeviiiiiiiii e 6
Where does harassment OCCUI? ........uvvvveeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenns 9
How have public authorities responded?........ccccoeereieiiiieiiiiiieieieceeeeeeee, 12
What needs t0 Change? .........coiveiieiiinciieeeecccreee e e 13
How can we take this forward in Wales?........ccooeeeeiieiiiiiciiiiieeeeccceeeeeee, 13
T lo)n 01 p Y= aTe = o L) 14
Recommendations for taking this forward in Wales........cccccoeeeeereeennnn... 18
NEXE SEOPS ceeietiieieiiieee ettt e e e e e e s e e eaeseenneseennnessannnnnnas 22
ADOUL the INQUITY ..eueeeeieee e aaanaeanees 22
Whowe are and what We do......ceeeeeveeveeiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 24
(@] 31 = Tl B 1 LR PURPPPRRPPPPIR 24

Acknowledgements

This inquiry has benefited from the generous contributions of many individuals
and organisations. The Equality and Human Rights Commission is grateful to all
those individuals, disabled people’s organisations, voluntary organisations,
inspectorate bodies, and public and private authorities who have given
evidence to the Inquiry. Particular thanks goes to the friends, families and
survivors of disability harassment who were generous enough to share their

experiences with us.
Page 2

2



Foreword

Our inquiry, which was GB-wide,
shows that disability harassment s a
daily experience for many disabled
people. This summary of the main
report draws out points particularly
relevant to Wales.

People told us they routinely
experience different forms of
harassment such as name calling,
physical violence, bullying and cyber-
bullying, sexual harassment,
domestic violence and financial
exploitation.

Some disabled people say they just
acceptit asinevitable and live with it.
Others try to rearrange their lives to
avoid abusive situations. Often low
level incidents escalate and,
tragically, sometimes end in torture
and death. Everyone we spoke to
feels it damages their lives.

Our evidence shows that for many
disabled people we are along way
from a Wales that treats everyone
with dignity and respect. Ensuring
the human rights of everyone in
Wales are protected is an urgent task.

Last year the Commission published
How fair is Wales?- our assessment of
the greatest inequalities in Wales.
Seven challenges emerged from this
evidence. One of these is to reduce
the incidence of hate crime targeted
at disabled people and other groups
and work is already underway to
achieve this.

Ann Beynon, Wales Commissioner

www.equalityhumanrights.com/walesdhfi

There are unique opportunities to
make progress in Wales. The Welsh
Government has identified tackling
disability hate crime as a top equality
priority and we have new equality
duties which will enable public
authorities to prioritise and deliver on
this issue.

We set out to investigate disability
harassment and the response of
public authorities to it. The inquiry
has identified seven GB-wide
recommendations.

Based on Welsh evidence, and
because many of the levers for
change are devolved, we have
identified four key areas for
intervention in Wales:

* building leadership and
partnerships

= using the new equality duties

* introducing rights-based
safeqguarding

* increasing reporting rates.

Our recommendations can only be
achieved through effective
partnerships. We hope you will rise to
this challenge. Together we can make
a real difference to the lives of
disabled people and their families.

Kate Bennett, National Director for Wales
Page 3



Inquiry into disability-related harassment - Wales summary

Wh

Fiona Pilkington

“We can do anything we like and
you can't do anything about it.”

carry out an inquiry?

(One of the gang of young people
involved in harassing Fiona
Pilkington and her children)’

On 23 October 2007, the charred
remains of Fiona Pilkington and her
daughter Francecca Hardwick were
found in the family’s burnt-out blue
car. The inquest into their deaths
concluded that Fiona had killed
herself and her daughter “due to the
stress and anxiety regarding her
daughter's future, and ongoing
anti-social behaviour.”

Fiona Pilkington and her two disabled
children - Francecca, who had a
learning disability and Anthony, who
had severe dyslexia - had endured
seven years of harassment. Eggs and
stones had been aimed at their
house, bottles thrown into their
garden. Their hedge was repeatedly
jumped on, the ‘for sale’ sign outside
their house was damaged and their
gates and fences were set on fire.
Their windows were broken on a
number of occasions. They were
taunted, insulted and verbally
abused.

' quoted by Fiona Pilkington’s mother, Pam
Cassell, during the inquest into her death

Stones were thrown at Francecca’s
bedroom window as she went to bed,
accompanied by demands that she
lift up her nightdress. Her way of
walking was imitated and mocked.
Anthony was bullied at school and
received death threats. He was
punched in the mouth, chipping a
tooth and pushed into a car, injuring
his hand. He was locked in a shed at
knifepoint and had to smash a
window to escape. He was hit by
stones while out cycling and was
attacked with aniron bar.

Leicestershire Constabulary had been
contacted on 32 separate occasions
by Fiona herself, her mother and her
neighbours. At the inquest into the
deaths of Fiona and Francecca, the
jury decided that both Leicestershire
Constabulary and Hinckley &
Bosworth Council bore some
responsibility for their deaths.
Leicestershire County Council social
services department was also
criticised for failing to refer Fiona for
professional help after she told a
social worker she felt suicidal
although the inquest decided that
the County Council’s actions did not
contribute to Fiona’s death.

Page 4



and in Wales...Christopher
Foulkes

On 8 March 2007, Christopher
Foulkes was found dead in his flat in
Rhyl by his care worker. He was lying
on the floor on a blanket with blood
around him.

Christopher was 39 and had a
physical impairment, using a Zimmer
frame or wheelchair to get around,
and a mental health condition. Carers
attended his flat three times a day.

Christopher died following an assault
by a 15-year-old boy who he had
previously accused of stealing from
him. The teenager had been visiting
Christopher for some months.

Christopher began to suspect the boy
of stealing from him and told a friend
he didn't want him at his home.

On the night of 7 March 2007, the
boy broke into Christopher’s flat,
beat him about the head and body
and stole a mobile phone, money and
other items. The teenager was
originally charged with murder, but
the charge was reduced as the
medical evidence was inconclusive as
to the cause of Christopher’s death.
He pleaded quilty to wounding with
intent.

He was sentenced to an 18 months
training and detention order.

www.equalityhumanrights.com/walesdhfi

These and other cases highlighted in
the media concerned us deeply.
Viewed together with our research
and the information gathered from
our helpline a picture emerged of a
serious problem regarding the
harassment of disabled people. We
were convinced that this needed to
be better understood so that
effective solutions could be identified
and acted upon. For that reason we
began ourinquiry.

Page 5



Inquiry into disability-related harassment - Wales summary

he wider problem

“We take it so often we don't think
itis abuse, butitis.”

Female focus group participant
with a mobility impairment,
aged 31-59

“My sister called me mentally
handicapped and used to hit me a
lot.”

Woman with learning difficulties,
aged 31-59

The shocking cases of abuse
described previously clearly show the
tragic results of a failure to tackle
disability-related harassment. The
most important finding of this
inquiry, however, is that harassment
is a common experience for many
disabled people and is not confined
to a few extreme cases. The incidents
which reach the courts and receive
media attention are just the tip of the
iceberg.

Disability-related harassment is a
profound social problem. For many
disabled people it is a part of
everyday life. Some disabled people
view it as inevitable, and focus on
living with it or reorganising their
lives to avoid it as best they can.

What is disability-related
harassment?

“l cannot explain to you what a
living hell it's been.”

Woman with mobility impairment,
aged 31-59

Harassment can take many forms. It
ranges from name calling in the
street to bullying at school or on the
internet; petty violence to full-on
physical assault; theft and fraud;
sexual assault; domestic violence and
damage to property. It can be
perpetrated by strangers, but equally
it can happen in the context of the
family, friendships or relationships.

Furthermore, harassment can take
place in full view of other people and
the authorities without being
recognised for what it is. A culture of
disbelief exists around this issue.
Many find it difficult to face up to the
fact that disabled people are the
recipients of much spite, brutality
and exploitation.

The culture of disbelief operates at
many different levels. Authorities do
not take the complaints of disabled
people seriously and do not respond
with sufficient urgency. Witnesses in
the wider community do not tackle or
challenge behaviour such as name-
calling, teasing and bullying, seeing it
as a normal or inevitable part of life. If
a disabled person has become socially
isolated, it can be difficult for other
people to recognise when a
friendship or relationship is in fact
exploitative and damaging.

Page 6



Even disabled people themselves,
perhaps in response to being ignored
or disbelieved, can play down the
impact of harassment. They often
don’t report it, sometimes because
they don’t know who they could
report it to, sometimes because they
fear that reporting could make the
harassment worse. As a result, this
behaviour is not investigated,
recorded, or addressed. It passes
under the radar without a trace. The
perpetrators never have to face any
consequences of their actions, and
their victims continue to live in fear.

This is why we describe disability-
related harassment as hidden in plain
sight.

What impact does it have?

“l wish | was dead out of it.”

Woman with mobility impairment,
aged 31-59

“You come to a point where you
can’t go to sleep at night... you’re
all on edge.”

Woman with a mobility
impairment, aged 31-59

Some disabled people told us they
tried to ignore harassment or escape
from it. Some were shocked at
unprovoked, targeted incidents
whilst others became angry. Many
people said they felt vulnerable and
this undermined their desire not to
be held back by their health condition
or impairment.

www.equalityhumanrights.com/walesdhfi

Overall being harassed made people
feel unsafe and fearful. They felt
humiliated and embarrassed. This
was often true even if there were no
witnesses. In public places it was
worse, making people feel exposed,
standing out from the crowd, feeling
different and isolated.

Disabled people who had
experienced harassment by being
duped, exploited or preyed upon felt
hurt and betrayed. People abused
over the internet found it traumatic
and distressing and felt they had to
withdraw from sites that had played
an important role in their lives.

Following an incident some people
didn’t tell anyone. Those that did talk
about it mainly wanted to deal with
the emotional impact. They often
didn't report the incident. Sometimes
because they didn’t know who they
could report it to, or because they
were afraid reporting could make the
harassment worse.

Page 7



Inquiry into disability-related harassment - Wales summary

What is the scale of the
problem?

Our research suggests that disability-
related harassment is widespread.
But accurate statistics are not
currently available and there are
major gaps in the data that is
gathered by schools, local
authorities, health and housing
services and in the criminal justice
system.

The British Crime Survey 2009/10
indicates that 19% of disabled adults
were crime victims in Wales and
England last year. This amounts to
around 100,000 people in Wales. Of
course, not all crime experienced by
disabled people is related to their
disability. Equally, however, much
disability-related harassment does
not involve criminal behaviour. So the
numbers experiencing harassment
may be much higher.

We also know that fear of crime is
greater for disabled people.

Without accurate data public
authorities will not be able to
understand disability harassment or
prevent and respond to it effectively.

Page 8



www.equalityhumanrights.com/walesdhfi

\Where does harassment occur?

Harassment takes place in many
different settings, including out and
about, close to home, in the home,
on public transport, in public places
and at school or college.

Out and about

“It's bad enough having a disability
without people rubbing it in my
face every five minutes.”

Woman with learning difficulties,
aged 31-59

“People might think that it is
nothing, it is a bit of joking, but it is
devastating.”

Man with reduced physical
capacity, aged 31-59

People gave us evidence about their
experiences being out and about,
whether shopping, socialising or
going to and from work, school or
college.

Some people told us that name-
calling had escalated into physical
assault and violence. One woman
described how youths in Cardiff city
centre had called her names, spat on
her, then tried to kick her walking
stick away. A man from Bridgend
explained how difficult life could be
when socialising in pubs and clubs -
verbal abuse often escalated into
arguments and physical assault. A
mobility scooter user was verbally
abused and had stones and cans
thrown at him by a gang of teenagers
in Gwent.

Street-level abuse isn’t confined to
larger Welsh towns or cities.

One man with a learning disability,
living in a very small mid-Wales
village, described how he was
“cornered then beaten-up by a
gang of drunken men”. Another
man, in rural north-west Wales, told
us how a gang of local men tried to
run him over in their car.

One woman from Newport described
how customers — and one in
particular - would pull faces and mock
her while she was working in the
aisles of a local supermarket. She
said: “she was looking at me and
pulling faces at me... | was working
there, and she was making fun (of
me).”

Harassment also occurred in shops,
cinemas, restaurants, clubs and other
leisure venues.

Close to home

One man told us his family lived in
constant fear of the neighbours in his
south Wales neighbourhood:

“My wife always takes a
Dictaphone out with her when
she, or we, leave the house in
case we get more abuse, so we
can make the police aware of the
troubles we suffer that make us
afraid to leave the house.”

Another disabled woman from north-
east Wales said: “The neighbour
shouts remarks across the garden
fences, he swears at me. He and his
friends snigger and laugh at me,
this has been happening for about
two-and-a-half years.”

Page 9



Inquiry into disability-related harassment - Wales summary

One family from east Wales told us:
“We’ve had petrol poured round
our vehicle, threats to fire bomb our
home, the vehicle scratched... four
lots of attacks with bricks, oil and
creosote all over it and three bags of
paint over our property.”

In the home

A woman from mid Wales described
the abuse she suffered from her
brothers and sisters but had decided
enough was enough. She explained:
“If she starts getting funny again, |
will tell somebody because | am not
having her hitting me all my life; I
am not putting up with that.”

Another woman from west Wales
said: “My sister called me
“handicapped”...so everybody
could hear her say that in a big loud
voice. She did that because she
knew she could not hit mein
public...my sister used to smack me
all the time and she used to
threaten me. | think it was black-
mailing me, saying if you do this, |
will...”

School or college

A man from mid Wales, explained
how having learning difficulties made
him a target. He said: “When going
to and from college | was
approached by high school students
who spat at me and called me
names. This happened everyday for
a number of weeks.”

One mother told us she'd moved to
different locations in west and north
Wales for the sake of her son's
education

“Because of the harassment he
couldn't carry on with the second
year.”

School or college was the setting for a
lot of reports of harassment,
including from adults who said they
were still emotionally raw from
experiences a long time ago.

Public transport

“Then I had a tirade of abuse,
called an f’ing cripple. Told |
should be grateful to get on the
bus and stop bloody moaning.
His language was appalling. But
what got me most was that the
bus was full.”

Man with mobility impairment
aged 31-59

“l have had a couple of problems
with using trains and guards
making comments... people tend
to think you are exaggerating... if
they are with you and see it for
themselves they realise you're
not exaggerating.”

Man with reduced physical
capacity aged 31-59

Disabled people told us travelling on
public transport is a ‘hot spot’ where
incidents of verbal and physical abuse
from other travellers are
commonplace. Sometimes the abuse
came from staff. Other times staff did
not intervene to prevent harassment.

Some disabled people told us that by
using an aid such as a cane or walking
stick, wheelchair or a guide-dog they
feel highly visible and vulnerable at
unstaffed stations.

Page 10

10



In Wales 174 out of 221 rail stations
are unstaffed making this a serious
issue.

Some disabled people told us they
had been harassed by bus drivers.
One man from north Wales said once
drivers spotted his wheelchair they
wouldn’t stop.

He added: “The driver just wasn't
prepared to allow me on the bus
although it did have a disabled
badge on the side, saying it was
accessible for disabled users”. He
added: “I have been at the bus stop
on my own, the bus driver has
drove up, seen I was in a wheelchair
and drove straight by.”

Many disabled people didn’t
complain to bus companies because
they didn’t have any confidence their

complaint would be treated seriously.

They thought they would be “fobbed
off.”

www.equalityhumanrights.com/walesdhfi

Why does it happen?

There is no definitive evidence about
what motivates the perpetrators of
disability harassment. People told us
they thought ignorance about
disability is widespread and provides
a fertile breeding ground for
harassment. They feel lack of
knowledge leads to a lack of empathy
or even fear.

Some we spoke to said other people
were sometimes uncomfortable or
embarrassed. Some saw harassment
as an unthinking, emotional response
to being seen as ‘different’ or
‘vulnerable’. Some people told us
they thought they were seen as ‘fair
game’, particularly by young people
who were bored and had nothing
better to do.

Many people told us they thought
their perceived vulnerability made
them a target for criminal and
predatory individuals. Others felt
targeted because of envy. Sometimes
neighbours were jealous of special
vehicles or housing adaptations or
benefits.

Page 11

11



Inquiry into disability-related harassment - Wales summary

How have public authorities resp

“I followed all the necessary
procedures to complain but | was
ignored. Complaints right up to
chief executive and ministerial
level got no response.”

Male, with learning difficulties
and long term health condition,
aged 45-54.

Disability harassment is unwanted,
abusive and exploitative behaviour
carried out by individuals or groups.
One of the aims of this inquiry is to
investigate the effectiveness of public
authorities in preventing or
eliminating it.

Overall public authorities and public
transport operators in Wales are
failing to protect disabled people and
their families from harassment. There
is a failure to recognise the extent
and impact of harassment and abuse
of disabled people, to take action to
prevent it happening in the first place
and intervene effectively when it
does.

We have found that:

= Incidents are dealt within
isolation rather than as a
pattern

= Authorities give insufficient
consideration to disability as a
motivating factor in bullying,
anti-social behaviour and crime

= Left unmanaged, low level anti-
social behaviour has the
potential to escalate into more
extreme behaviour

= Opportunities to bring
harassment to an end are being
missed

» Thereis sometimes a focus on
the victim’s behaviour and
‘vulnerability’ rather than
dealing with the perpetrators

= Agencies do not tend to work
effectively together to bring
ongoing disability-related
harassment to an end

» There has been little
investment in understanding
the causes of harassment and
preventing it happening in the
first place

» There are barriers to reporting
and recording harassment
across all sectors

» There are barriers to accessing
justice, redress and support so
most perpetrators face few
consequences for their actions
and many victims receive
inadequate support

» Thereis alack of shared
learning from the most severe
cases, so the same mistakes are
repeated again and again.

Wales could do so much better. This
is a challenge that we all need to
address as a matter of urgency.
Preventing the harassment of
disabled people will require changes
within our organisations. It will also
require us to play a partin
transforming the way disabled people
are viewed, valued and integrated
into society.

Page 12

12



\What needs to change?

Our GB-wide inquiry has identified
seven areas where improvements will
show to us that society is achieving
real progress in tackling harassment.

Real ownership of the issue in
organisations is critical to
dealing with harassment.
Leaders need to show strong
personal commitment and
determination to tackle change
Definitive data is available
which spells out the scale,
severity and nature of disability
harassment and enables better
monitoring of the performance
of those responsible for dealing
with it

The Criminal Justice System is
more accessible and responsive
to victims and disabled people
and provides effective support
to them

We have a better
understanding of the
motivations and circumstances
of perpetrators and are able to
more effectively design
interventions

The wider community has a
more positive attitude towards
disabled people and better
understands the nature of the
problem

All frontline staff who may be
required to recognise and
respond to issues of disability-
related harassment have
received effective guidance and
training

Page 13

www.equalityhumanrights.com/walesdhfi

Promising approaches to
preventing and responding to
harassment and support
systems for those who require
them have been evaluated and
disseminated.

How can we take this

forward in Wales?

In Wales we have unique
opportunities to make progress
because many of the levers for
change are devolved. So we are
making the following
recommendations:

A determination to eliminate
harassment needs to be shown
by leaders. Partnerships to
prevent and respond to
harassment and share effective
practice should be encouraged,
including piloting Multi-Agency
Risk Assessment Conferences
The new equality duties should
be used to prioritise tackling
disability harassment

A human rights based approach
to safeguarding should be
introduced by the Welsh
Government

We want to see increased
reporting and call on public
authorities to putin place
measures to ensure a positive
reporting experience and
effective support.

13



Inquiry into disability-related harassment - Wales summary

Recommendations

1. Real ownership of the issue is
apparent in organisations critical to
dealing with harassment. Their
leaders need to show strong
personal commitment and
determination to tackle change

Our evidence shows the most critical
factor in organisations improving
their performance, is the level of
commitment and determination to
address the issue shown by their
leaders. It is after all senior officers
and executives who set the priorities
for organisations. If there is a real and
visible commitment to change at the
most senior level then it is likely that
this will drive real change throughout
the organisations which they lead.

In addition to showing leadership
within their organisations, we would
expect leaders to embrace public
accountability. Transparency over
performance is one aspect to this -
which involves a real commitment to
share data which shows how their
organisation is performing. Another
aspect is the display of a personal

willingness to be publicly accountable

for any serious instances which occur
in their area.

Finally, we would expect this personal

commitment to be formally
recognised within public authorities
core objectives, either within their
governance structures or otherwise.

2. Definitive data is available which
spells out the scale, severity and
nature of disability harassment and
enables better monitoring of the
performance of those responsible
for dealing with it

Whilst our inquiry has uncovered a
great deal about disability related
harassment, there remains much
which we don’t know. Without
comprehensive data, across all
agencies, it will be impossible for our
society to properly respond. In the
interests of transparency, we also
need public authorities to publish
their performance so that the public
can assess how they are performing.

We recommend that all data systems
in these agencies:

= Are able to record whether the
victim is a disabled person
(and/or has another type of
protected characteristic)

= Are able to determine:

- Whether the incident was
motivated by the victim’s
disability and/or any other
form of protected
characteristic

- The clearly identified lead
officer who will take the
issue forward

- Whether or not thisis a
firstinstance of
harassment or part of a
more general, or
escalating, pattern

Page 14

14



The priority status
accorded to each incident
in relation to risk to the
victim or, if known,
motives and circumstances
of the perpetrator

Where continuation of
offending persists,
whether and to what
extent priority status
should be given to a
situation

Which other local agencies
have been alerted to the
problem or, if this has not
occurred, why not and
under what circumstances
should such agencies
become involved.

Also what appropriate
partnership arrangements
should be in place

Enable identification of all
on-going or repeat
instances to avoid the
anxiety and risk that such
instances of behaviour will
become progressively
more serious

Share data across agencies
and identify solutions to
effective data sharing
particularly where lives
may be at risk; in particular
those that are dealt with
by the Criminal Justice
System to ensure that all
involved have a
comprehensive picture.

www.equalityhumanrights.com/walesdhfi

3. The Criminal Justice System is
more accessible and responsive to
victims and disabled people and
provides effective support to them

Another major requirement of the
general response to disability-related
harassment, and other forms of crime
and anti-social behaviour, is that
victims feel adequately supported by
all the agencies involved and that
these agencies, more generally,
respond to their concerns effectively.

Wherever a disabled person first
reports an incident, the route to
reporting, and ultimately the criminal
justice system, needs to be clear and
unhindered.

We recommend the following:

= All agencies involved with
dealing with the issue should
review, and, where necessary,
remove all obstacles to the
reporting of disability related
harassment. This will, in
particular, involve seeking the
views of disabled people and
their representatives

= The police and prosecution
services should always establish
whether a victim is disabled,
and if they are, should consider
themselves whether that may
be a factor in why the
crime/incident occurred

» They should not rely solely on
the victim’s perception. They
should reconsider this and
several stages throughout the
investigation. Crimes against
disabled people should rarely
be considered motiveless.

Page 15

15



Inquiry into disability-related harassment - Wales summary

4. We have a better understanding
of the motivations and
circumstances of perpetrators and
are able to more effectively design
interventions

One fundamental issue in dealing
with the problem of disability-related
harassment, and other forms of
abuse, is to understand why it occurs.

The most urgent issue is getting a
better understanding of the
characteristics and motivations of
those who commit acts of disability-
related harassment.

In addition, there needs to be more
awareness of the general structures
and attitudes (and the interactions
between them) which give rise to the
problem in the first place.

To address these issues, we
recommend that:

= Targeted researchis
undertaken in collaboration
with National Offender
Management Service and local
authorities in Scotland to build
a clearer picture of perpetrator
profiles, motivations and
circumstances and, in
particular, to inform prevention
and rehabilitation

= Criminal justice agencies
support bodies that
commission research to
stimulate and support studies
that looks into why harassment
occurs in the first place and
broader attitudes towards
disabled people.

5. The wider community has a more
positive attitude towards disabled
people and better understands the
nature of the problem

With the possible exception of some
of the cases which are given a high
profile by the media, disability-
related harassment does not seem to
be perceived as serious or widespread
by the public - it is as we describe -
hidden in plain sight. Changing wider
public attitudes towards the
seriousness of such harassment, and
more general social attitudes towards
disabled people, forms an important
part of a wider solution.

In order to initiate change in this area,
we recommend that public
authorities:

= Review the effectiveness of
current awareness raising
activities concerning disability-
related harassment where they
exist and assess where gaps in
their campaigns could usefully
be filled

= Use the equality duties as a
framework for helping promote
positive images of disabled
people and redress
disproportionate
representation of disabled
people across all areas of public
life

» Encourage all individuals and
organisations to recognise,
report and respond to any
incidences of disability-related
harassment they may
encounter.

Page 16

16



6. All frontline staff who may be
required to recognise and respond
to issues of disability-related
harassment have received proper
training

It is clear from our evidence that
reporting and response of
harassment would both be improved
substantially with better training for
frontline staff providing public
services. The cases show that even
staff such as environmental health
officers may come across instances of
harassment and the ability to make
appropriate safequarding referrals
could make a significant difference to
peoples’ lives.

To address these issues, we
recommend that:

= All frontline staff working in all
agencies, whether public
authorities or voluntary and
private sector, where disability-
related harassment, anti-social
behaviour or other similar
forms of activity are likely to be
anissue are trainedin how to
recognise and make
appropriate safequarding

= More generally all agencies
should consider whether their
wider staff training and
development processes and
appraisal and promotion
systems should be amended to
ensure such knowledge
becomes embedded and an
incentive for better job
performance

= Staff gain an understanding of
disability equality matters and
appropriate engagement with
disabled service users.

www.equalityhumanrights.com/walesdhfi

7. Promising approaches to
preventing and responding to
harassment have been evaluated
and disseminated

There is much in what many public
bodies are doing which might
emerge as good practice and create
vital learning which other bodies can
follow to help reduce the problem.
However, many of these promising
approaches are in their infancy and as
yet we do not know conclusively
what works and what doesn’t.

Therefore, we recommend that
public bodies conduct rigorous
evaluation of their response and
prevention projects over a three year
time frame so that we can build a
shared knowledge of the most
effective routes to take to deal with
harassment and reduce its instance.
All evaluations should then be widely
and openly shared so that all bodies
can learn from them.

Page 17

17



Inquiry into disability-related harassment - Wales summary

1. A determination to eliminate
harassment needs to be shown by
leaders. Partnerships that prevent
and respond to harassment and
share effective practice should be
encouraged, including piloting
Multi-Agency Risk Assessment
Conferences

A key theme of the evidence from
Wales was the view that the most
effective means of eliminating
disability harassment is through
partnership working involving public
authorities, the voluntary sector,
disabled people’s organisations and
individuals.

Demonstrating leadership and a
determination to drive change is an
essential element in building
powerful partnerships. Partnership
working is one of the principles of the
Welsh Government’s programme for
improving public services “Working
together as the Welsh Public
Service, with more co-ordination
between providers to deliver
sustainable, quality and responsive
services”. Our findings show that this
approach is vital to tackling disability
harassment.

Wales has a relatively small number
of public authorities and strong
networks. This provides
opportunities to save lives and
increase the impact of strategies to
tackle disability harassment. By
sharing information and effective
practice, and by working in
partnership, public authorities can
increase the possibility of providing
seamless management of individual
cases. Our evidence shows this is
essential in securing the best possible
outcome for disabled people.

Some contributors pointed to the
success of the Multi-Agency Risk
Assessment Conferences (MARACs)
currently used in Wales in cases of
domestic abuse. This was suggested
as a possible pilot approach for
disability harassment.

At a MARAC local agencies meet to
discuss high-risk victims of domestic
abuse living within the local area.

The primary objective is to reduce the
risk of serious harm or homicide for a
victim and increase the health, safety
and wellbeing of those at risk.

Information about the risks faced by
the victims is collated from a number
of different agencies. Actions needed
to ensure safety are shared and used
to create a risk management plan
involving all relevant agencies. By
providing a coordinated effort from
all agencies and organisations, a
MARAC serves to ensure that high risk
victims, adults and children, are
listened to, supported and better
protected from further abuse.

Page 18

18



2. The new equality duties should
be used to prioritise tackling
disability harassment

Our How fair is Wales?report
gathered evidence to determine the
greatest inequalities in Wales. One of
the key challenges from the evidence
is to reduce the incidence of hate
crime, including disability hate crime.

In order to drive change in this area
we recommend that public
authorities use the public sector
equality duty and, in particular, the
specific duties in Wales. The specific
duties will assist public authorities in
addressing disability harassment
effectively.

Disabled people should be consulted
and involved in setting objectives,
gathering data and developing an
action plan to prevent harassment.
The duties will also enable the action
plan to be monitored and reviewed to
ensure the best possible outcomes
are achieved.

Schools were identified in our
evidence as having a significant role
to play in changing attitudes,
integrating disabled pupils and
encouraging understanding of
diversity. Schools should deal
effectively with bullying and with
pupils harassing disabled people in
public places.

www.equalityhumanrights.com/walesdhfi

Schools are covered by the specific
duties and these will be helpful in
developing objectives to prevent
harassment. The Welsh Government
has recently published guidance for
schools on bullying which includes
bullying of disabled pupils and cyber-
bullying.

With the possible exception of cases
which are given a high profile by the
media, disability-related harassment
does not seem to be perceived as
serious or widespread by the public.
Changing wider public attitudes
towards the seriousness of such
harassment, and more general social
attitudes towards disabled people,
forms an important part of a wider
solution.

Participants in roundtable discussions
in Wales identified addressing the
cultural attitudes underpinning
harassment as a top priority. They
spoke about the need for a
collaborative approach to changing
attitudes so that disabled people are
viewed positively in society and we
have a genuinely inclusive Wales. The
specific duties are an opportunity for
engaging public authorities in
developing awareness-raising
campaigns.

Page 19

19



Inquiry into disability-related harassment - Wales summary

3. A human rights based approach
to safeguarding should be
introduced by the Welsh
Government

Local authorities have particular
responsibilities for leading both adult
and child protection, or safeguarding
of those at risk. Safeguarding means
keeping safe individuals who may be
at risk of harm, including intervention
in a particular situation and
prevention before a situation
develops.

The safeguarding agenda in Wales
has been governed, since 2000, by ‘In
Safe Hands’. This is guidance
published by the Welsh Government.

Prevention of disability harassment
involves fundamental human rights
principles such as autonomy and
dignity. A review of ‘In Safe Hands’ in
20102 recommended a more rights-
based approach to safequarding in
Wales. This would replace the
perception of ‘vulnerable people’
with an alternative perspective of
considering ‘people in vulnerable
situations’. This puts people’s right to
autonomy at the heart of
safeguarding decision-making.

2 Welsh Institute for Health and Social Care,
University of Glamorgan, 2010, Review of In
Safe Hands: A Review of the Welsh
Government’s Guidance on the Protection
of Vulnerable Adults in Wales
http://www.nmc-
uk.org/Documents/Safequarding/Wales/Re
view%200f%20In%20Safe%20Hands.pd

20

In March 2011, the Deputy Minister
for Children and Social Services in
Wales announced the publication of
‘Sustainable Social Services in Wales:
A Framework for Action’ which set
out the Welsh Government’s
intention to establish a National
Safequarding Board for adults and
children.

The First Minister has announced
there will be a Social Services Bill
which is expected to include
safequarding. This is an important
opportunity to introduce an effective
safeguarding system which also
protects the human rights of disabled
people.

fPage 20



4. We want to see increased
reporting and call on public
authorities to put in place measures
to ensure a positive reporting
experience and effective support

Our inquiry shows there is significant
under-reporting of harassment.
Some people told us they didn't
report because they were
embarrassed or ashamed. Others
lacked confidence or felt it would be
too stressful. Some people didn't
think it was worth the effort as it was
unlikely to be taken seriously or
achieve a positive result.

Some people told us they didn't think
about the abuse they experience as
crime. They see it as something that
has to be put up with in life. So an
important first step in increasing
reporting rates is to raise awareness
amongst disabled people about the
right to live in safety and security.

Many public authorities and
voluntary sector organisations in
Wales have identified the human and
financial benefits of early
intervention. They have begun to
focus resources and build local and
Wales-wide partnerships with the aim
of raising awareness and encouraging
reporting.

There is an opportunity here in Wales
to learn from each other, to
understand what is working well from
the initiatives already underway. For
example the work of the Disability
Hate Crime Group Cymru and the
success of the ‘Talk about it’ project
that has established 31 reporting
centres in the Gwent area.

www.equalityhumanrights.com/walesdhfi

A key step towards increasing
reporting rates is to ensure people
have a positive experience when they
attempt to report anincident.

People told us that positive
experiences in reporting were where:

= |t was clear who toreportto

» The process was accessible to
the complainant

» Theywere met with a
sympathetic and understanding
reception

» The authorities responded
swiftly, where it was called for

» Staff concerned were disability
aware and sensitive to the
needs of the person reporting
harassment

» They were given the
opportunity to describe the
incident in full

= Something happened in
response to the report, that
satisfied them to some degree

» They were keptinformed of
what was being done

= Aresolution was sought that
reduced the risk of reprisals or
escalation of the problem

» Where intermediary support
was offered.

Page 21

21



Inquiry into disability-related harassment - Wales summary

To achieve a Wales where disabled
people can live in safety we set out a
number of recommendations and
actions to drive change.

Most of these require public
authorities to work much more
closely together, developing a co-
operative approach to deliver results.
We will explore this with the relevant
organisations. Our Autumn
conferences will initiate this process.

The conferences will help us begin to
test out whether these
recommendations are the right steps,
how they might be delivered and
whether there are any other
measures that could be effective.

During the next six months we will
work with partner organisations to
develop action plans and to promote
effective approaches for eliminating
disability harassment.

We will monitor and evaluate the
outcomes of our work with partner
organisations to see what difference
this inquiry has made to the safety
and security of disabled people in
Wales.

About the inquiry

Our powers as a Commission

The Equality and Human Rights
Commission was created in 2007. We
have a statutory remit to promote
and monitor human rights and to
protect, enforce and promote
equality.

Under section 3 of the Equality Act
2006, the Commission is required to
encourage and support the
development of a society in which:

» People’s ability to achieve their
potential is not limited by
prejudice or discrimination

» Thereis respect for, and
protection of, each individual’s
human rights

» Thereis respect for the dignity
and worth of each individual

» Eachindividual has an equal
opportunity to participate in
society

* There is mutual respect
between groups based on
understanding and valuing of
diversity, and on shared respect
for equality and human rights.

Under section 16 of the Equality Act
2006, the Commission may conduct
inquiries into issues or sectors where
there are concerns relating to human
rights and/or equality. Through our
inquiry powers, the Commission can
require organisations to provide
evidence, both in writing and in
person. We then publish
authoritative, evidence-based reports
and make recommendations for
action.

Page 22

22



The definition of disability
related harassment

For the purposes of this inquiry, the
Commission defined disability-
related harassment as unwanted,
exploitative or abusive conduct
against disabled people which has the
purpose or effect of either:

= Violating the dignity, safety,
security or autonomy of the
person experiencing it, or

= (Creating an intimidating,
hostile, degrading or offensive
environment.

Terms of reference and the
remit of this inquiry

The scope of the inquiry covers
England, Scotland and Wales.

The Commission is required to set
terms of reference for its formal
inquiries which investigate:

= The causes of disability related
harassment

» The actions of public
authorities and public transport
operators to prevent and
eliminate it

= Disability-related harassment
carried out by individuals or
groups of people, including
strangers, neighbours,
acquaintances, friends, family,
relatives and partners

= Harassmentin public places
such as streets, parks, schools
and leisure facilities and/orin
private such as the home.

It does not cover harassment in the
workplace, which is covered by a
separate legislative framework.

www.equalityhumanrights.com/walesdhfi

What we did in Wales

In Wales we gathered evidence
through our confidential online web
page, by post, email and in person.
This included giving evidence by
phone, text phone and type talk, by
email, by letter and in person (one-to-
one) from individuals, public
authorities, disabled people’s
organisations, the 3" sector and
others. We held roundtable events
attended by individuals and 24
representatives from public
authorities, disabled people’s
organisations and the voluntary
sector.

Hearing Panels in Wales took
evidence from 28 organisations
including the Welsh Government and
representatives from health, local
authorities, transport, education,
housing sectors, police and
inspectorates.

Page 23

23



Inquiry into disability-related harassment - Wales summary

\Who we are and what we do

The Equality and Human Rights Commission aims to reduce inequality,
eliminate discrimination, strengthen good relations between people, and
promote and protect human rights.

More detailed recommendations can be found in the full inquiry reportin
respect of key sectors including:

Education

Criminal justice

Local and central government
Health

Housing

Social care

Transport

Partnerships

Regulators and inspectorates

The full report can be found at:
www.equalityhumanrights.com/dhfi

You can find out more or get in touch with us via our website:
www.equalityhumanrights.com/wales

Or by contacting our Helpline:

Telephone: 0845604 8810
Textphone: 0845 604 8820
Fax: 0845 604 8830

ISBN: 978-1-84206-409-2
September 2011
© Equality and Human Rights Commission

Page 24
24



Communities, Equality and Local Government
Committee

CELG(4)-02-11 : Paper la

Equality and Human Rights Commission Inquiry into
disability-related harassment

Hidden in plain sight: Wales summary
September 2011

The Equality and Human Rights Commission welcomes the Communities,
Equality and Local Government Committee inquiry into disability-related
harassment in Wales.

The Commission published the findings of its own two year GB-wide inquiry
earlier this month. We are pleased to have the opportunity to share the
findings and recommendations of the Wales summary with the Committee.

We set out to investigate disability harassment and the response of public
authorities to it. On the basis of the evidence we gathered we identified four
key recommendations for Wales. These are set out later in this briefing. We
will be working with partners to ensure the recommendations are built into
the priorities of public authorities, transport operators, voluntary sector and
disabled people's organisations in the months ahead.

The Committee can play an important part in assisting progress on the
Commission's inquiry recommendations and in moving us towards safety
and security for disabled people in Wales by:

Leadership

Taking a leadership role in prioritising this issue and identifying the best
levers to drive change.

Scrutiny

Scrutinising the Government and Ministers to find out how they propose to
implement the Commission's Wales recommendations and reviewing
progress going forward.

Policy and legislation

Page 25



Engaging with the forthcoming Government Social Services Bill to ensure
the safeguarding approach underpinning the Bill is founded on human rights
principles.

Our findings

The Commission's inquiry, which was GB-wide, shows that disability
harassment is a daily experience for many disabled people. People told us
they routinely experience different forms of harassment such as name
calling, physical violence, bullying and cyber-bullying, sexual harassment,
domestic violence and financial exploitation.

Some disabled people say they just accept it as inevitable and live with it.
Others try to rearrange their lives to avoid abusive situations. Often low level
incidents escalate and, tragically, sometimes end in torture and death.
Everyone we spoke to feels it damages their lives.

Overall, public authorities and public transport operators in Wales are not
doing enough to protect disabled people and their families from harassment.
Not enough is being done to recognise the extent and impact of harassment
and abuse of disabled people, to take action to prevent it happening in the
first place and intervene effectively when it does.

Our evidence shows that for many disabled people we are a long way from
a Wales that treats everyone with dignity and respect. Ensuring the human
rights of everyone in Wales are protected is an urgent task.

Last year the Commission published How fair is Wales? - our assessment of
the greatest inequalities in Wales. Seven challenges emerged from this
evidence. One of these is to reduce the incidence of hate crime targeted at
disabled people and other groups, and there are unique opportunities to
make progress in tackling disability harassment in Wales.

The Welsh Government has identified tackling disability hate crime as a top
equality priority and we have new equality duties which will enable public
authorities to prioritise and deliver on this issue.

The full inquiry report includes seven GB-wide recommendations and
specific sectoral recommendations, covering local government and the
police, for example.

Based on Welsh evidence, and because many of the levers for change are

devolved, we have identified the following four key recommendations in
Wales:

Page 26



Our recommendations for taking this forward in Wales

1. A determination to eliminate harassment needs to be shown by
leaders. Partnerships that prevent and respond to harassment and
share effective practice should be encouraged, including piloting
Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conferences.

Demonstrating leadership and a determination to drive change is an
essential element in building powerful partnerships and changing public
attitudes.

A key theme of the evidence from Wales was the view that the most
effective means of eliminating disability harassment is through partnership
working involving public authorities, the voluntary sector, disabled people’s
organisations and individuals.

Wales has a relatively small number of public authorities and strong
networks. This provides opportunities to save lives and increase the impact
of strategies to tackle disability harassment. By sharing information and
effective practice, and by working in partnership, public authorities can
increase the possibility of providing seamless management of individual
cases. Our evidence shows this is essential in securing the best possible
outcome for disabled people.

2. The new equality duties should be used to prioritise tackling
disability harassment

In order to drive change in this area we recommend that public authorities
use the public sector equality duty and, in particular, the specific duties in
Wales. The specific duties will assist public authorities in addressing
disability harassment effectively.

Disabled people should be consulted and involved in setting objectives,
gathering data and developing an action plan to prevent harassment. The
duties will also enable the action plan to be monitored and reviewed to
ensure the best possible outcomes are achieved.

Participants in roundtable discussions in Wales identified addressing the
cultural attitudes underpinning harassment as a top priority. They spoke
about the need for a collaborative approach to changing attitudes so that
disabled people are viewed positively in society and we have a genuinely
inclusive Wales. The specific duties are an opportunity for engaging public
authorities in developing awareness-raising campaigns.

3. A human rights based approach to safeguarding should be
introduced by the Welsh Governrr\gabe 27



Local authorities have particular responsibilities for leading both adult and
child protection, or safeguarding of those at risk. Safeguarding means
keeping safe individuals who may be at risk of harm, including intervention
in a particular situation and prevention before a situation develops.

In March 2011, the Deputy Minister for Children and Social Services in
Wales announced the publication of ‘Sustainable Social Services in Wales:
A Framework for Action’ which set out the Welsh Government’s intention to
establish a National Safeguarding Board for adults and children.

The First Minister has announced there will be a Social Services Bill which
is expected to include safeguarding. This is an important opportunity to
introduce an effective safeguarding system which also protects the human
rights of disabled people.

4. We want to see increased reporting and call on public authorities to
put in place measures to ensure a positive reporting experience and
effective support

Our inquiry shows there is significant under-reporting of harassment. Some
people told us they didn't report because they were embarrassed or
ashamed. Others lacked confidence or felt it would be too stressful. Some
people didn't think it was worth the effort as it was unlikely to be taken
seriously or achieve a positive result.

An important first step in increasing reporting rates is to raise awareness
amongst disabled people about the right to live in safety and security. Many
public authorities and voluntary sector organisations in Wales have
identified the human and financial benefits of early intervention. They have
begun to focus resources and build local and Wales-wide partnerships with
the aim of raising awareness and encouraging reporting. There is an
opportunity here in Wales to learn from each other, to understand what is
working well from the initiatives already underway. For example, the work of
the Disability Hate Crime Group Cymru and the success of the ‘Talk about it
project that has established 31 reporting centres in the Gwent area.

A key step towards increasing reporting rates is to ensure people have a
positive experience when they attempt to report an incident.

Page 28



Communities, Equality and Local
Government Committee

CELG(4)-02-11 : Paper 2
Mencap Cymru

Mencap’s vision is a world where people with a learning disability and
their families are valued equally, listened to and included.

Across the UK, Mencap has led a campaign to tackle the growing
problem of hate crime attacks on people with a learning disability and
their families.

In 2011, it launched two campaigns, Stand By Me and in Wales ARCH -
Awareness, Reporting and Convictions on Hate crime.

The ARCH campaign aims to:

e Increase the awareness of people with a learning disability and
their families about hate crime and what it means.

e Increase the reporting rates of people who have been victims of
hate-crime through providing a Wales wide learning disabled
specific reporting service managed through the Wales Learning
Disability helpline (funded by Mencap and Wales Government).

e Increase the numbers of convictions of those committing
disability hate crime against people with a learning disability and
their families.

So what have we done?

Mencap Cymru staff with a learning disability have visited day services
and gateway clubs and places where people with a learning disability
meet to explain about hate crime and why it is wrong.

We have also established a 3™ party reporting system using our free-
phone advice and information helpline for people to report incidents
of hate crime.

We are working with the police and criminal justice system in Wales to
help them identify hate crime and bring about successful convictions.

So who will be giving evidence?

Claire Bowler is the co-chair of the Mencap Cymru Committee. She is
from Pontypridd and has a learning disability. Claire has been a victim

Page 29



of hate crime and believes strongly that those in positions of trust
must help people like herself live a life free from fear.

Dawn Gullis, also has a learning disability and will be known to many
Assembly Members as a former campaigns officer for Mencap Cymru
and now is its External Affairs Officer.

Dawn was responsible for meeting with people with a learning
disability at the start of the ARCH campaign to explain to them what
hate crime was and how they should speak up against it.

Dawn also has a very positive story about how she was a victim of
Mate-Crime; a term used to explain the targeting of people with a
learning disability by those pretending to befriend them who then go
on to physically, sexually or financially abuse them.

Wayne Crocker is the Director of Mencap Cymru and has worked with
people with a learning disability and their families for nearly 20 years.
In his presentation

Wayne will highlight some of the areas of concern and difficulties
surrounding the identification of learning disability hate crime and
what in Mencap Cymru’s view could be put in place to support the
aims of the ARCH campaign.

Our running order will be:

Claire Bowler will introduce the work of Mencap Cymru as its co-chair
and explain the ARCH campaign

Dawn Gullis will talk about her work on hate crime and ‘mate-crime’

Wayne Crocker will discuss some of the actions that could help
support the reduction of hate crime.

Page 30



Communities, Equality and Local
Government Committee

CELG(4)-02-11 : Paper 3
All Wales Hate Crime Research Project
1. Introduction

The All Wales Hate Crime Research Project is a Big Lottery funded
partnership between Race Equality First, Cardiff University and the Cardiff
and the Vale of Glamorgan Equality and Human Rights Network. The project
has been funded for three years to investigate the nature and the impact of
hate crime in Wales across all recognised equality strands (age, gender,
disability/impairment, religion and belief, race, sexual orientation and
transgender/gender identity).

The project consists of two parallel parts: research conducted by Cardiff
University and capacity building activities (including consultation) lead by
Race Equality First. The project as a whole aims to increase the capacity of
organisations in Wales to address hate crime by producing good quality data
on the nature of hate victimisation, reporting and underreporting, as well as
other key information, such as the profile of perpetrators and how victims
want to be supported. To achieve this, the project is undertaking
groundbreaking quantitative and qualitative research which focuses on hate
crime and hate-related incidents and will generate the most comprehensive
dataset of its kind anywhere in the UK.

The project started in April 2010 and we are currently mid-way through data
collection. The quantitative data from our hate crime survey will be collected
by autumn 2011 at which stage the analysis process will begin. The
qualitative interview stage of the research has begun and will be completed
by spring 2012.

In order to disseminate the findings effectively and prepare for the final
report which will be published in 2013, Race Equality First is offering
capacity-building activities for organisations and will be encouraging local
partnership working on this issue.

Project Outcomes
« Robust data for use in policy development, lobbying and fundraising
« Final report with recommendations
« Data to support anti-hate crime campaigning

» Increase in the capacity of organisations in Wales to respond to and
tackle hate crime

1
Page 31



2. Research Conducted by Cardiff University

The project is unable to provide the Committee with research data because
we are currently mid-way through data collection. Therefore we are unable
to discuss findings at this stage, but can provide information about research
design and main thematic areas to be explored.

The project is using a mixed methods approach to collecting the data. Phase
one consists of a large-scale survey commissioned from the market and
social research company IpsosMORI. The data from this survey will include
both victims and non-victims of hate crime and incidents. Questions focus
on community cohesion, victimisation, perpetrator characteristics, criminal
justice experiences etc. Surveys are being carried out via online completion,
postal distribution and face-to-face completion at events. The nature of the
sampling framework precludes examination of the prevalence of hate crimes
and incidents within each equality strand. This is due to the hard-to-reach
nature of the respondents and resource restrictions. However, the survey
data will provide insight into the nature of victimisation across individual
equality strands. The data will also provide the opportunity to predict
particular outcomes by equality strand, such as the type of victimisation that
is most likely to be experienced, the impact felt from this victimisation and
the level of interaction with services post-victimisation.

Phase two consists of a series of in-depth qualitative interviews with victims
of hate crimes and incidents across Wales. The research team aims to
undertake between 50-70 in-depth interviews with victims of hate crime
from each equality strand to gather their opinions on, among other issues,
the nature of/motivation for hate incidents; the provision of support for hate
crime victims and where relevant, their experiences of the criminal justice
system. The interviews will provide the opportunity to capture the nuanced
and complex nature of hate crime victimisation across different equality
strands.

3. Consultations Conducted by Race Equality First

The following concerns regarding disability hate crime and harassment have
been identified from consultation events and meetings which Race Equality
First has conducted with stakeholders. More detail can be provided on
request

1 Barriers to reporting hate crime and harassment, including physical,
communication and social barriers;

2 Negative impact of hearsay and the media;

3 Lack of trust that anything will be done about hate
crime/harassment;

4. Need for more specialist/dedicated services to support disabled
people when they are victims of hate crime and harassment.

2
Page 32



The following areas have been identified by stakeholders as needing
improvement:

1. Efforts to achieve long-term cultural change in attitudes to
disabled people:

2. Practical improvements in terms of accessibility
3. Increased approachability of criminal justice agencies

4. Establishment of hate crime/ASB MARACSs, (multi-agency risk
assessment conferences) to share information about high risk cases of
hate crime and ASB and improve support for victims

3
Page 33



Agenda ltem 3 OfQ!VO

Ms Ann Jones AM

Chair of the Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff, CF99 INA
Monday 25" July 2011

D@\ NN ;—\E) Ny

Re: Universal Broadband in Wales

I am writing following the welcome announcement that Wales is to receive almost £57m from
the UK government to improve its broadband coverage. It’s certainly positive news.
Academic studies show the positive impact improved broadband can have on the community.
Indeed one 2009 OECD-World Bank study looking at the benefits argues that every 10%
increase in broadband penetration brings more than 1% extra GDP growth.

Argiva believe that there is an ever-greater social and economic cost to each person who falls,
or is left behind on the wrong side of this ‘digital divide’. Research suggests that consumers
and SMEs left without broadband would be disproportionately rural - which is a significant
factor in Wales.

We believe, the overriding public policy objective should be to deliver universal access to
broadband. However, it is crucial that the political commitment to achieving universal access
to broadband by 2015 is not lost in the arguments about who should receive ‘superfast’
broadband first... and how. The real gain for Wales and UK plc is to achieve universal access
to broadband - not to push fibre to 90% penetration and then stop. We believe there would be
a considerable opportunity cost (both economically and socially) if consumers who already
have access to broadband were "super-served” with fibre... while those who currently have
little, or no broadband provision remain under-served and left behind.

While the debate, both in Wales and across the UK, has considered how universal broadband
could best be achieved, there is a risk that the emphasis on maximising penetration of
‘superfast’ could leave no public subsidy remaining for potentially millions of rural
consumers, farmers and other SMEs.

It is a message we delivered in the Westminster Parliament, when we gave oral evidence to
the Culture, Media and Sport Select Committee’s Spectrum Inquiry last month, and the
message we communicated to the House of Commons Committee on Welsh Affairs when we
submitted written evidence to their current Inquiry into Broadband in Wales.

John Cresswell, Chief Executive
Argiva, UK House, 2- 5 Great Titchfield Street, London W1D 1NN

Tel: 0330 303 6731 Email: john@argiva.com 1

Argiva Limited. Registered office: Crawley Court, Winchester, Hampshire 5021 2QA United Kingdom.

Registered in England and Wales number 2487597 P ag e 34



Fixed solutions alone cannot deliver universality: Where fibre is not cost effective, we believe
Wireless broadband is the only practical solution. Argiva believes all the evidence indicates
that the optimal means of securing universal access to broadband requires a mix of technology
solutions.

Therefore Wireless broadband must be an essential part of the solution to be procured by the
Welsh Assembly Government, either by ensuring its complimentary procurement for the final
10% alongside superfast, and/or by Ofcom ensuring that universal coverage is required in a
4G licence for mobile broadband.

To help achieve this, we recommend that Ofcom should be obliged:
e to increase the scope of the coverage obligation to, say, 99% population;
e to measure that obligation by Nation, so Wales benefits equally;
e to double the size of the spectrum the obligation attaches to, to a third of the 800 MHz
spectrum.

I ask you to pressure Ofcom and ensure that this once-in-a-generation opportunity isn’t lost.

It is also worth noting that — in a separate procurement exercise, the Westminster Government
is about to decide whether smart meters should be deployed universally in Wales so that all
Welsh consumers would be able to make the same informed decisions to reduce their energy
consumption. Argiva believes that — as with broadband - universality must be a key objective
of that programme too.

Kind regards

Yours sincerely

John Cresswell

Page 35



Mark Drakeford Assembly Member for Cardiff West

CELG(4)-02-11 (p5)

o

Ann Jones AM

Chair

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

CF99 1NA

Our Ref: MD/ES/MEAR01001/01111242

26 July 2011

Dear Ann

Re: Cuts to the Equality and Human Rights Commission’s office

| am sure you are already in correspondence with others concerning the proposed cuts to the
budget of the EHRC and the impact that this will have on services provided here in Wales.

I have constituents who are directly affected by the proposals and they are anxious to raise the
possibility at the Community Equalities and Local Government Committee might undertake and
urgent investigation into the planned cuts of the EHRC’s budget and staffing and the affects this
may have on communities and equality work in Wales.

| am sure that these are issues that have already been drawn to your attention but if the
committee does have a chance to consider such a possible urgent investigation | would be
grateful if you could let me know of the outcome — whether that is to go ahead with some urgent

work or whether the committee decides it is unable to accommodate such activity within its
Autumn programme.

With thanks

Yours

Mark Drakeford AM
Cardiff West

Fourth Floor, Transport House, 1 Cathedral Road, Cardiff CF11 9SD
Tel: 02920 223 207 Fax: 02920 230 422 www.markdrakeford.com

Page 36



CELG(4)-02-11 (p6) |_|_.._®

Commission

Y
Comisiwn
Etholiadol

Ann Jones AM

Chair, Communities, Equality and Local
Government Committee

National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

5 September 2011

@WQL\ hu.(c/ y

Performance standards for Returning Officers

| am writing to let you know that the Commission is revising its performance
standards for Returning Officers and to invite comments from you or the Committee,
as part of our formal consultation on the changes.

As you know, | have previously given evidence to and corresponded with the former
Equality of Opportunity Committee on election accessibility issues in particular. Qur
proposed revisions to the performance standards scheme include a strengthening of
the scheme's requirements on accessibility; for example, revised Standard 2a
specifically relates to accessibility of polling stations.

The Electoral Administration Act 2006 (EAA) gave the Electoral Commission powers
to set standards of performance for Electoral Registration Officers (EROs), Returning
Officers (ROs) and Counting Officers (COs) in Great Britain. The Commission has
now reported on the performance of ROs following the European Parliamentary

elections in 2009 and the UK general election in 2010.
The Electoral Commission
Caradog House
1-6 Saint Andrews Place
Cardiff CF10 3BE

Y Comisiwn Etholiadol

Ty Caradog

Democracy matters Larm s

Mae democratiaeth yn cyfrif %“r ,.J“ .W” zu\s o Ffon 029 2034 6800

An independent body established by Act of the UK Parliament a.@.ﬂWN_SE D\E\m ﬂmﬁ“wmo_wmm%mwwow%m_mnoﬂimmmo:.06.:x
www.electoralcommission.org.uk

Corff annibynnol a sefydiwyd gan Ddeddf Seneddol y DU OR IN PEOPLE



Electoral

Commission
Y
Comisi

n
Al

After two years of measuring RO performance against the existing standards and
learning from our experience in monitoring the delivery of the May 2011 elections and
referendums, we now intend to develop and improve the current performance
standards framework.

We want to make sure that our performance standards focus not only on ensuring
that key processes are in place to deliver successful, well-run elections, but also that
they look at the quality of the outcomes that these processes produce. We are also
aiming to change the way we monitor performance against the standards so that,
instead of asking ROs to report on their performance after the poll, we will instead
monitor performance in real time. This should allow us to identify any problems, and
to work closely with the RO to correct them, before they impact on the delivery of the
poll.

We have also used the lessons learnt from the polls in 2011 to try to ensure that the
information that we will ask for in future presents as little burden as possible to ROs
and their staff and does not impact on their capacity to deliver their core duties.

Before we can determine or publish any standards, the Commission must consult the
Secretary of State, and any other person the Commission deems appropriate. We
have, therefore, published a consultation paper on our intended new approach, which
can be downloaded in English and Welsh from the Commission’s website at:
www.electoralcommission.org.uk/performance-standards.

We aim to publish the final standards in December 2011 in order to give ROs
sufficient time to incorporate the standards into their planning for the May 2012
elections. With this in mind, the consultation will run for six weeks, ending on Friday
14 October.

After the consultation has finished, we will review the responses received and
consider any amendments to the proposed standards as a result of those responses.
We will publish the final revised performance standards for ROs in December 2011,
along with our guidance for Returning Officers on planning for and administering the
scheduled 2012 elections.

>3_:vam:amaUo%mﬂmc__m:mgU<>Qo::mCx_umﬂ__mém
Corff annibynnol a sefydiwyd gan Ddeddf Seneddol y DU _wvm.@@ 38



The
Electoral
Commission

Comisiwn
Etholiadol
| have also written to the Minister Carl Sargeant about the consultation.

Yours sincerely

Kay Jenkins

Head of Wales Office
Pennaeth Swyddfa Cymru

Cc: Marc Wyn Jones
Frank Cuthbert

>:_:n_mbm:qmaan<mw~mgm:mac<>oﬁo:3mcx_um1_m3m2
Corff annibynnol a sefydiwyd gan Ddeddf Seneddol y DU _Um.ﬁm w©



Link to report - Hidden in plain sight - Inquiry into disability-related
harassment
CELG(4)-02-11 (p7)

This document contains 236 pages

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/inquiries-and-
assessments/inquiry-into-disability-related-harassment/

Page 40



	Agenda
	2 Disability-related Harassment - Evidence gathering
	CELG(4)-02-11 (p1a)
	CELG(4)-02-11 (p2)
	CELG(4)-02-11 (p3)

	3 Papers to Note
	CELG(4)-02-11 (p5)
	CELG(4)-02-11 (p6)
	CELG(4)-02-11 (p7)


